
Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  July 20, 2011  Page 1 

 
 
GRISWOLD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING   

 
MINUTES  JULY 20, 2011  GRISWOLD SENIOR CENTER 
 
I. REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.) 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chairman  Thomas  Giard,  Jr.  called  this  regular  meeting  of  the  Griswold  Economic  Development 
Commission to order at 7:01 p.m. at the Griswold Senior Center. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
Present:  Chairman Thomas Giard, Jr., Jetmore Paul Lach, Chris Hargus, Town Planner Carl Fontneau, 

and Recording Secretary Donna Szall. 
 
Absent:   Vice Chairman Melvin, Matthew Baber 
 
Also Present:   Brian Kent of Kent & Foster, Mario Tristany of Stadia Engineering 
 
3. Determination of Quorum 
 
T.  Giard  stated  that  there  is  a  quorum  for  this  regular  meeting  of  the  Economic  Development 
Commission. 
 
4. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. Minutes of Regular Meeting of  June 16, 2011 
 
T. Giard asked for any corrections or omission.  P. Lach made a motion to accept the minutes. C. Hargus 
seconded the motion. All were in favor. The motion carried. 
 
5. Correspondence 
 
There was no correspondence. 
 
6. Workshop 
 

A. Discussion of the Main Street Corridor plan for enhancements. 
 

T. Giard asked C. Fontneau to give an explanation of why we are here.  C. Fontneau explained that Brian 
Kent of Kent & Frost and Mario Tristany of Stadia Engineering were here to make a presentation of the 
Main  Street  Corridor  Plan  for  elements  of  the  site  plan  for  Main  Street  and  Phase  I  Streetscape 
enhancement showing us what it will look like and get input from people here tonight. 



Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  July 20, 2011  Page 2 

Brian  Kent  explained  that  this was  an  informal  presentation  and  for  people  to  interrupt  if  they  had 
questions  or  comments.    He  explained  that  Levi  Brooks was  also  part  of  the  team  including  Stadia 
Engineering and Kent & Frost that was authorized to do a façade design pilot project since the owner of 
Massey  Insurance was  planning  to  update  the  façade  of  his  building.   He  stated  that  Rick Gibstein, 
Architect took measurements of the Massey Insurance building and that it is an ideal pilot project since 
it is in a great location and the building is not too large as an ideal candidate. 
 
B. Kent identified the problems such as lack of unity, difficult environment for pedestrians, lack of green 
space,  river  is  out  of  sight  parking  and  a  perceived  traffic  pattern  problems. He  identified  locations 
where  there  could  be  sidewalk  bump  outs where  people  can  congregate  such  as Dean's  Corner. He 
stated that some of the driveways are so wide that  it  is not safe for pedestrians can cross confidently 
suggesting  that  those  locations can have more  sidewalks and green  space. He explained  some of  the 
locations where there could be municipal parking.   He wants to bring the consciousness of the river to 
the community.  He stated that he is working with the DEP for Route 12, Route 201 and Route 138.  
 
B. Kent stated  that  Jewett City has a compact healthy downtown  that  included buildings with historic 
structure, the town hall,  library, post office, bank with that are essential anchors along with the parks 
and the river.  B. Kent stated that it is the goals of this project is to reestablish a friendly face along Main 
Street and to find a way to  improve these principal historic building downtown.   B. Kent  identified the 
historical photographs  that showed mature  trees on Main Street  that provided shade and making  the 
utility wires less noticeable and now there are no trees downtown. B. Kent showed the locations where 
trees could be reestablished along Main Street. 
 
B. Kent showed examples of unifying themes  in other area towns such as Willimantic and Putnam  for 
gateways, art displays and green space and alleyways. 
 
B. Kent stated that Jewett City needs to be a unified theme such as Heritage River Town that refers to 
the geography and cultural history of Jewett City that can be the subject of a logo. He showed a sample 
of  a  potential  logo  that  can  appear  on  benches,  signs,  banners  and  receptacles.   He  also  explained 
another  theme  that  "Jewett  City  Honors  its  Veterans  in  the  Veterans Memorial  Park  and  the  new 
American  Legion housing project. He  suggested  that  the  two  could be  linked along Main  Street with 
American flags on existing utility poles.   He talked about banners and their  locations at three principal 
highway entrances on Route 12 and Route 138, both sides of Fanning Park to create a gateway effect. 
The banners  can  reflect  the downtown as well as  seasonal  themes.   He  showed a possible  logo  that 
incorporated  the dam,  the  river with  trees and a building.   He  stated  that  this plan would eventually 
include a Farmers Market, and River Walk.   
 
B. Kent explained that the STEAP Grant that the Town received will be used to put the street furniture 
on Main Street. He showed photographs of what types of benches, planters, litter receptacles, detached 
banners  and  information  kiosks  that  could  be  incorporated  into  the  Jewett  City Main  Street  Phase  I 
improvement and façade planning phase.   T. Giard asked  if there could be speed bumps and sidewalk 
bump outs and a bike lane for a half mile of business district that would reduce the speed limits through 
town.  B. Kent stated that because it is a state road, an extremely convincing argument would have to be 
made  for  something  like  that  to happen. B. Kent  explained  the  concept of  visual  friction  that would 
reduce  traffic  speeds.   Mario Tristany explained  that  there  should be very visible,  strategically‐placed 
crosswalks to make drivers aware and make the pedestrian feel safer when crossing the street. B. Kent 
stated that lighting was not part of the Phase I plan but that some thought should be given to lighting. 
He  showed  photographs  of  decorative  lighting  poles  that  were  available  and  showed  historical 
photographs of Jewett City with acorn shaped luminaries. He stated that the decorative lighting can be 



Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  July 20, 2011  Page 3 

placed  between  the  utility  poles.  There  was  discussion  of  these  matters  that  included  banners 
strategically  located at the gateways of Jewett City and the  importance of the  information kiosk  in the 
streetscape  the  locations  of  planters,  benches  and  bike  racks,  trees,  expanded  sidewalks  with 
suggestions made from those people in the audience. 
 
B. Kent explained the Concept Plan for a Town Hall Green that would create a highly visible  impact at 
the southern gateway to downtown.   He explained that this plan would eliminate  four parking spaces 
from the Town Hall but that the parking would be redesigned in the rear parking areas.  He showed the 
expansion of  sidewalks,  lawns and  landscaping beds  for a public  space with  shade  trees,  information 
kiosk,  postal  box,  newspaper  dispenser,  benches,  litter  receptacles,  bike  rack  (street  furniture)  and 
historic sign, locations of trees, expanded sidewalks. B. Kent explained that the flag poles would remain. 
B. Kent explained that the street furniture can be purchased in the Phase I stage and he listed the cost 
and quantities of each.  B. Kent stated that this would be a good thing to show people that the Town is 
committed to  improving Main Street. There was discussion of this matter  including  the  importance of 
the  information  kiosk  in  the  streetscape, use of  solar panels on  the  town hall as well as  suggestions 
made from those people in the audience. 
 
B. Kent showed an example of the location of a proposed municipal parking lot along Main Street at the 
back of the buildings that would enter from Soule Street and run through to the Pharmacy using clear 
signage  that  this  parking  is  available. He  stated  that  the  parking  lot  can  accommodate  100  parking 
spaces. He stated that there was a question of whether there should be access from the Main Street.  He 
explained that there would be landscape strips that will absorb the stormwater to eliminate the runoff 
to abutting properties. B. Kent stated that the Borough Regulations influence the form of downtown and 
the urban frontage of building along Main Street. He stated that the best scenario is to have building at 
the  sidewalk.   When buildings are built  set back  from  the  road creates voids  in  the  sidewalk and are 
uninviting for pedestrians. M. Tristany stated that the front yard set back is a minimum of 40 feet from 
the  centerline  of  the  road which  is  an  impediment  to  the  implementation  of  the  final Main  Street 
Master Plan resulting  in breaking the "historic" building facades  located at the back of the sidewalk  in 
the Central Business District "C" zone.  C. Fontneau stated that there are recommendations in the Plan 
of Conservation and Development to support a village zoning district Section 8.2j with zoning regulation 
changes to preserve the street line.  B. Kent stated that Stadia Engineering, Kent & Frost and Levi Brooks 
were  interested  in  those changes  to  the regulations B. Kent continued  to show  locations  for planters, 
benches, trees and sidewalk bump outs, bike racks and banners along Main Street, around Fanning Park 
and Dean's Corner  including enhanced crosswalks. There were suggestions made from those people  in 
the audience regarding Arremony Bakery location.   
 
B.  Kent  and M.  Tristany  completed  their  presentation.    T.  Giard  asked  about  the  time  line  for  the 
completion of the master plan. B. Kent stated the contract has us completed by October and stated that 
there was no reason why it could be completed sooner.  T. Giard asked what could be accomplished this 
year. B. Kent stated that the street furniture could be place as well as banners and the logo.  He stated 
that  all  those  items  can  be  designed,  purchased,  and  wait  until  next  spring  or  possibly  in  the  fall 
regarding  the banners  and  to  get permission  for uses of  the poles by  the  utility  companies  and  the 
CTDOT regarding the bridge.   B. Kent stated that they would pick a company with sizes and colors and 
approval  of  artwork  to  get  accurate  costs  comparisons  from  a  number  of  companies.  There  was 
discussion of this matter including that it should be done quickly for the benches, planters, banners and 
logo.  There was discussion of this matter including that a subcommittee would be chosen to make the 
purchases from at least two companies and installation could be done from the Griswold DPW. 
 



Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  July 20, 2011  Page 4 

C.  Fontneau  suggested  that with  the  consensus of EDC,  to  schedule  a meeting with  the Main  Street 
Steering Committee  a week  from  now  to  start making  some  of  the  recommendations  for  the  street 
furniture,  logo  and  fixtures  to  present  to  the  BOS  so  that  these  items  can  be  purchases  as  soon  as 
possible to show we are working on the grant of $120,000 for this project.  T. Giard stated that there is 
consensus of the EDC. C. Fontneau will set up a meeting for next week on Wednesday at 2 p.m.  in the 
Town Hall meeting room. T. Giard stated that the steering committee can prioritize the items. There was 
discussion of  this matter  including  that  there was  a multitude of  items  to be prioritized with pricing 
samples and a suggestion that Jewett City be a Heritage River Town and that the property owner take 
some responsibility for maintenance of planters at their business. 
 

B. Report of activity from the Space Needs Committee 
 
T. Giard stated that the Space Needs Committee meeting for July had been cancelled.  He explained that 
the senior center had indicated that they would like to stay in their present location and perhaps expand 
into an adjoining lot and create more parking; the ambulance is not interested. There was discussion of 
this matter including that the Youth Center/Recreation Department is willing to go anywhere to get out 
of their current location. 
 

C. Status review for commercial projects 
 
T. Giard asked C. Fontneau for an update. C. Fontneau gave an update on Lake Side Landing subdivision 
that  includes  the DiRoma Garden Center  and  the  Powder Coating Company;  and  that  there  are  two 
more businesses in that subdivision within the coming year.  He stated that the Hotel will file the Mylars 
within few days and there will be a ground breaking in the fall.  C. Fontneau stated that there may be a 
pad restaurant on the hotel site hopefully soon after that. He stated that there will  is a need for a STC 
review because the parking spaces now exceed 200 spaces for the site as well as modifications to Route 
164.   
 
P. Anthony asked about Wyre Wynd.   C. Fontneau explained that when the present owner accepts the 
environmental land use restrictions and filed on the land records and the current leas expires, it will be 
marketable again.  There was discussion of this matter.  
 
P.  Lach  asked  about Pleasant View  condos.   C.  Fontneau  explained  that  the  Town made  the owners 
demolish the site. 
 
7. Adjournment 
 
T. Giard  asked  for  a motion  to  adjourn. C. Hargus made  a motion  to  adjourn.  P.  Lach  seconded  the 
motion. All were in favor. The meeting adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 
 
  Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
  Donna M. Szall 
  Recording Secretary 


